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1                      AGENDA
              PUBLIC MEETING NO. 19-04-10

2                APRIL 4, 2019, 10:34 a.m.
3 ITEM                                         PAGE VOTE

1    Ratification of the minutes of the
4     March 6, 2019, public meeting               7   8

    Ratification of the minutes of the
5     March 18, 2019, public meeting              8   9

2   Applications for initial casino key         9  10
6     employee licenses:

     a) Saly Brown
7      b) Rajesh Das

     c) Clifford S. DiPalo
8      d) Michael A. Festa

     e) Brandon R. Goldberg
9      f) Joyce L. Griffeth

     g) Doris E. Hawkins
10      h) Victoria Luu

     i) Peter A. Pallitto
11      j) Dianna R. Robles

     k) Seth M. Shapiro
12      l) William C. Talarico

3   Application of William P. Mills for a      10  11
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4   Application of Rebecca L. Schultz for a    11  12
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15 5   Approvals through Delegation of Authority  12
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6   Requests for inactivation of casino key    13  15
17     employee licenses:

     a) Theresa M. Drabik
18      b) Jennifer R. Fortucci

     c) Val L. Henderson
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20      f) Patricia A. Rocco
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22     employee licenses:
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23      b) Bridget J. Bassey
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24      d) Mary B. Gilson

     e) Kenneth M. Kadar
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1               (Public Meeting 19-01-09 was commenced
2        at 10:34 a.m.)
3               MR. NANCE:  Good morning.  I'd like to
4        read an opening statement:
5               This is to advise the general public
6        that in compliance with Chapter 231 of the
7        public laws of 1975 entitled "Senator Bryon M.
8        Baer Open Public Meeting Act," the New Jersey
9        Casino Control Commission on December 5th,

10        2018, filed with the Secretary of State at the
11        State House in Trenton an annual meeting
12        schedule.  On December 5th, 2018, copies were
13        mailed to subscribers.
14               Members of the press will be permitted
15        to take photographs.  We ask that this be done
16        in a manner which is not distracting to the
17        Commission.
18               The use of cell phones in the public
19        meeting room is prohibited.
20               Any member of the public who wish to
21        address the Commission will be given the
22        opportunity to do so before the Commission
23        adjourns for the day.
24               Please stand for the Pledge of
25        Allegiance.

7

1         ITEM NO. 1
2               (The Flag Salute was recited.)
3               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Good morning.  Please
4        answer when I call your name for the record,
5        please.
6               Commissioner Harrington?
7               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Here.
8               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Vice Chair Cooper?
9               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Here.

10               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  And Chairman Plousis?
11               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Here.
12               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Matters discussed in
13        closed session this morning included employee
14        key license matters.
15               Agenda Item No. 1, I will call for two
16        separate votes.  They would -- Item No. 1
17        includes the ratification of the minutes of
18        March 6, 2019, public meeting and the March 18,
19        2019, public meeting.
20               With respect to the March 6th, 2019,
21        meeting?
22               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a motion?
23               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I move
24        to ratify the minutes of March 6th, 2019.
25               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
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1         ITEM NO. 1
2               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
3               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
4               (No response.)
5               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
6        favor, say aye.
7               (Ayes.)
8               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
9               (No response.)

10               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
11               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  With respect to the
12        March 18, 2019, meeting.
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Are there any questions
14        for counsel?
15               (No response.)
16               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
17        motion?
18               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  I move to ratify the
19        minutes of March 18, 2019.
20               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
21               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
22               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
23               (No response.)
24               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
25        favor, say aye.

9

1        ITEM NO. 2
2               (Ayes.)
3               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
4               (No response.)
5               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
6               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 2 are
7        applications for initial casino key employee
8        licenses.
9               They are:  Saly Brown, Rajesh Das,

10        Clifford S. DiPalo, Michael A. Festa, Brandon
11        R. Goldberg, Joyce L. Griffeth, Doris E.
12        Hawkins, Victoria Luu, Peter A. Pallitto,
13        Dianna R. Robles, Seth M. Shapiro, and William
14        C. Talarico.
15               They are all initial casino key employee
16        licenses.  They have been reviewed by the
17        Division and staff.  No objection.
18               Staff recommends that you grant each.
19               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Are there any questions
20        regarding any of these matters?
21               (No response.)
22               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
23        motion?
24               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  I move to grant the
25        12 additional casino key employee licenses.
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1        ITEM NO. 3
2               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
3               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  I'll second
4        that.
5               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
6               (No response.)
7               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
8        favor, say aye.
9               (Ayes.)

10               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
11               (No response.)
12               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
13               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Thank you.
14               Item No. 3 is the application of William
15        P. Mills for a resubmitted casino key employee
16        license.
17               Again, the matter has been reviewed by
18        the Division as well as staff who recommend
19        that you grant the resubmitted key license.
20               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Are there any questions
21        on this matter?
22               (No response.)
23               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
24        motion?
25               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I move

11

1        ITEM NO. 4
2        to grant William P. Mills' resubmitted casino
3        key employee license.
4               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
5               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
6               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
7               (No response.)
8               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
9        favor, say aye?

10               (Ayes.)
11               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
12               (No response.)
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
14               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 4 is the
15        application of Rebecca L. Schultz for
16        resubmitted casino key employee license and for
17        qualification as Vice President Food and
18        Beverage for Marina District Development
19        Company, LLC.
20               Again, the Division has reviewed this
21        matter.  Staff has also reviewed and recommend
22        that the relief requested be granted.
23               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Are there any questions
24        regarding this matter?
25               (No response.)
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1        ITEM NO. 5
2               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
3        motion?
4               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  I move to grant
5        resubmitted key license and qualification.
6               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
7               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
8               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
9               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  This is a roll call,

10        Chairman.
11               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Okay.  Roll call, then.
12               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Commissioner
13        Harrington?
14               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Yes.
15               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Vice Chair Cooper?
16               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Yes.
17               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  And Chairman Plousis?
18               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Yes.
19               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 5 is approval
20        through Delegation of Authority between March
21        4, 2019, and April 5, 2019, pursuant to
22        Resolution No. 17-01-11-11-C.
23               Mr. MacFadden will review those with
24        you; however, no action is required.
25               MR. MacFADDEN:  Thank you.

13

1        ITEM NO. 6
2               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  You're welcome.
3               MR. MacFADDEN:  Good morning, Chairman
4        and Commissioners.
5               Item 5 consists of 13 individuals who
6        were issued a temporary casino key employee
7        license via Delegated Authority subsequent to
8        the March 6, 2019, public meeting.
9               They are:  Robert M. Capozzi, Michael S.

10        Dash, Matthew B. Derossi, Joseph Gerace, 5th,
11        Stephen H. Klinger, Rosemarie Mason, Sweta V.
12        Pandya, Charles L. Price, Joselyn Reyes, Carrie
13        A. Velez, Nelson V. Velez, James T. William,
14        III, and Jose G. Zamorano-Zelidon.
15               Additional, Ian G. Nebett and Lee A.
16        Terfloth will were issued a multi-casino
17        endorsement on their current casino key
18        employee license for Hard Rock Casino and
19        Boardwalk 1000.
20               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 6 are requests
21        for inactivation of casino key employee
22        licenses.
23               Again, Mr. MacFadden will review those
24        matters with you.
25               MR. MacFADDEN:  Thanks.



Public Meeting No. 19-04-10 April 10, 2019

www.renziassociates.com
Guy J. Renzi & Associates    (609) 989-9199

14

1        ITEM NO. 6
2               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Uh-hum.
3               MR. MacFADDEN:  Item 6 consists of eight
4        individuals who in lieu of filing a
5        resubmission application have requested to be
6        placed on the inactive list not to exceed five
7        years.  They are:  Theresa M. Drabik, Jennifer
8        Fortucci, Van L. Henderson, Christopher M.
9        Mauceri, Eric M. Orgovan, Patricia A. Rocco,

10        Michael E. Tarud, and Billy J. Turner.
11               Staff recommends granting the requested
12        relief.
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there any questions
14        regarding any of these matters?
15               (No response.)
16               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
17        motion?
18               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  I move to grant the
19        requested relief and order that the eight
20        casino key employee licenses be inactivated.
21               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
22               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  I'll second
23        that.
24               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
25               (No response.)

15

1        ITEM NO. 7
2               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
3        favor, say aye.
4               (Ayes.)
5               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
6               (No response.)
7               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
8               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 7 are
9        consideration of the lapsing of casino key

10        employee licenses.
11               Again, Mr. MacFadden will review those
12        with you.
13               MR. MacFADDEN:  Thank you.
14               Item 7 consists of five individuals
15        whose casino key employee review deadline has
16        passed and neither filed the resubmission
17        paperwork nor requested to be placed on the
18        inactive list.
19               Those individuals are:  Kostadinka
20        Banareva, Bridget J. Bassey, Tracy M. Faulkner,
21        Mary B. Gilson, and Kenneth M. Kadar.
22               Consequently, staff recommends that the
23        casino key employee licenses of these five
24        individuals be allowed to lapse.
25               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Are there any questions

16

1        ITEM NO. 7
2        on any of these matters?
3               (No response.)
4               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
5        motion?
6               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I move
7        to find that the five casino key employee
8        licenses lapsed pursuant to NJAC 19:41A-6.1(f)
9        of the regulation.

10               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
11               (No response.)
12               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  I think we have a phone
13        connection problem there.
14               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Oh, do we?
15               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Yeah.
16               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Commissioner
17        Harrington?
18               VICE CHAIR HARRINGTON:  I seconded it.
19        I had it on mute.  I'm sorry.
20               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Oh, okay.
21               All in favor?
22               (Aye.)
23               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
24               (No response.)
25               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.

17

1        ITEM NO. 8
2               MR. MacFADDEN:  Thank you.
3               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 8 is
4        consideration of the Complaint in State versus
5        Nadine C. Miller for a casino key employee
6        license.
7               Senior Counsel Teresa Pimpinelli will
8        address that matter with you.
9               MS. PIMPINELLI:  Chairman and

10        Commissioners, for your consideration is this
11        complaint.  The Division at this time is
12        seeking a suspension.
13               I do want to note for the record that
14        Miss Miller had contacted me by telephone and
15        indicated she will likely be requesting a
16        deferral.
17               Jordan Hollander is here on behalf of
18        the Division.
19               MR. HOLLANDER:  Good morning, Chairman
20        and Commissioners.  Jordan Hollander on behalf
21        of the Division of Gaming Enforcement.
22               The Division filed a complaint March
23        20th of 2019 in this matter as the Respondent
24        was charged with a disqualifying offense.  We
25        respectfully request that a suspension order be
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1        ITEM NO. 8
2        issued pending the resolution of that
3        complaint.
4               Thank you.
5               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Commissioners, are there
6        any questions to counsel?
7               (No response.)
8               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
9        motion?

10               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I move
11        to grant the Division's application to suspend
12        Nadine C. Miller's casino key employee license
13        and remand the matter for a hearing subject to
14        the conditions in the order.
15               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
16               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  I'll second
17        that.
18               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
19               (No response.)
20               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
21        favor, say aye.
22               (Ayes.)
23               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
24               (No response.)
25               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.

19

1        ITEM NO. 9
2               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 9 is
3        consideration of the Complaint in State versus
4        Kevin A. Servance, Sr., for a casino key
5        employee license.
6               Again, Senior Counsel Pimpinelli will
7        address that matter with you.
8               MS. PIMPINELLI:  Chairman and
9        Commissioners, this matter is seeking now a

10        revocation.  Respondent was suspended on
11        February 6th of 2019.  He has not responded to
12        staff communication nor requested a hearing.
13               Jordan Hollander is here on behalf of
14        the Division.
15               MR. HOLLANDER:  Good morning, Chairman
16        and Commissioners.  Jordan Hollander on behalf
17        of the Division of Gaming Enforcement.
18               As counsel noted, the Division filed a
19        complaint in January 2019 seeking revocation of
20        Mr. Servance's casino key employee license.  A
21        suspension order was entered at the February 6,
22        2019, meeting.
23               As he has not responded to a request for
24        a hearing, the Division asks that his casino
25        key employee license by revoked for the reasons

20

1        ITEM NO. 9
2        set forth in the Complaint.
3               Thank you.
4               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Thank you.
5               Any questions for counsel?
6               (No response.)
7               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
8        motion?
9               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I move

10        to:  A, find Kevin A. Servance, Sr.,
11        disqualified pursuant to NJSA 5:12-80(b) and
12        (d), NJSA 5:12-86(c)(1), (c)(3), (g), and NJSA
13        5:12-89(b); and, B, revoke his casino key
14        employee license; and, C, prohibit Mr. Servance
15        from applying for -- excuse me -- for applying
16        for or holding any license, registration,
17        qualification, or approval required under the
18        Act, including any position that does not
19        require a credential pursuant to NJSA
20        5:12-89 -- pardon me -- 106(c); and, D, permit
21        Mr. Servance to reapply for a casino key
22        employee license in accordance with the
23        timelines set forth in the order.
24               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
25               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  I'll second

21

1        ITEM NO. 10-11
2        that.
3               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
4               (No response.)
5               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, all in
6        favor, say aye?
7               (Ayes.)
8               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
9               (No response.)

10               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
11               Thank you.
12               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 10 is
13        adjourned.
14               Item No. 11, consideration of the
15        plenary qualification and casino key employee
16        licensure of Elizabeth L. Price to serve as
17        Chief Compliance Officer of HR Atlantic City,
18        LLC, and Seminole HR Holdings, LLC.
19               Again, Senior Counsel Pimpinelli will
20        review that matter with you.
21               MS. PIMPINELLI:  Chairman and
22        Commissioners, Miss Price was temporarily
23        granted her qualification and licensure on July
24        11, 2018.  She is now seeking her plenary
25        qualification and licensure.
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1        ITEM NO. 11
2               A draft resolution was circulated to the
3        parties.
4               Counsel is present and may now enter
5        their appearances.
6               MS. GIOSA:  Good morning, Chairman and
7        Commissioners.  Lea Giosa from Fox Rothschild,
8        on behalf of Petitioners for the consideration
9        of the plenary qualification and casino key

10        employee licensure of Elizabeth Price to serve
11        as Chief Compliance Officer of HR Atlantic City
12        and Seminole HR Holdings, LLC.
13               We have reviewed the draft resolution
14        and have no objection to either form or
15        substance.
16               Thank you.
17               MR. HOLLANDER:  Good morning, Chairman
18        and Commissioners.  Jordan Hollander on behalf
19        of the Division of Gaming Enforcement.
20               As Counsel noted, Miss Price received
21        temporary qualification and a temporary casino
22        key employee license with residency waiver on
23        July 11th of 2018.
24               You have the Division's letter of March
25        2019 recommending a grant of her requested

23

1        ITEM NO. 11
2        relief.
3               The Division has also reviewed the draft
4        resolution and has no objection.
5               Thank you.
6               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any questions for
7        counsel?
8               (No response.)
9               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a

10        motion?
11               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  I move to adopt the
12        draft resolution and:  A, grant an initial
13        casino key employee license to Elizabeth L.
14        Price pursuant to NJSA 5:12-89a and b; and, B,
15        find Miss Price qualified to serve as Chief
16        Compliance Officer for HR Atlantic City, LLC,
17        and Seminole HR Holdings, LLC, in accordance
18        with NJSA 5:12-85.1c and d, and NJAC 13:69C-2.6
19        and 2.7.
20               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
21               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  I'll second
22        that.
23               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
24               (No response.)
25               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, roll call

24

1        ITEM NO. 12
2        vote.
3               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Commissioner
4        Harrington?
5               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Yes.
6               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Vice Chair Cooper?
7               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Yes.
8               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  And Chairman Plousis?
9               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Yes.

10               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Thank you.
11               Item No. --
12               MR. NANCE:  12.
13               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  -- 12 is consideration
14        the plenary qualification and casino key
15        employee licensure of Patrick D. Martin to
16        serve as Vice President Regional Compliance,
17        MGM Resorts International.
18               Again, Senior Counsel Pimpinelli will
19        address those -- that matter.
20               MS. PIMPINELLI:  Chairman and
21        Commissioners, similar to the last matter, Mr.
22        Martin's temporary qualification and licensure
23        with a waiver of the residency was granted on
24        July 11, 2018.
25               A draft resolution was circulated to the

25

1        ITEM NO. 12
2        parties.
3               Counsel is present and may now enter
4        their appearances.
5               MR. MADAMBA:  Good morning, Chair and
6        members of the Commission.  Patrick Madamba,
7        Vice President and Legal Counsel for MGM
8        Resorts International.  And on behalf of
9        Patrick Martin to qualify our Applicant.

10               We have reviewed the draft order, and it
11        is fine in form and substance.
12               Thank you.
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Okay.
14               MS. RICHARDSON:  Good morning, Chairman
15        and Commissioners.  Tracy Richardson for the
16        Division of Gaming Enforcement.
17               You have our Division's report of April
18        2nd recommending that a casino key employee
19        license and qualification be issued to Mr.
20        Martin.
21               We've also reviewed the draft resolution
22        and have no objections.
23               Thank you.
24               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any questions for
25        counsel?
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1        ITEM NO. 12
2               (No response.)
3               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
4        motion?
5               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I
6        prove to adopt the draft resolution:  And, A,
7        grant an initial casino key employee license to
8        Patrick D. Martin pursuant to NJSA 5:12-89a and
9        b; and, B, find Mr. Martin qualified to serve

10        as Vice President, Regional Compliance for MGM
11        Resorts International in accordance with NJSA
12        5:12-85.1c and d, and NJAC 13:69C-2.7.
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
14               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
15               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
16               (No response.)
17               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, roll call
18        vote?
19               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Commissioner
20        Harrington?
21               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Yes.
22               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Vice Chair Cooper?
23               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Yes.
24               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  And Chairman Plousis?
25               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Yes.
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1        ITEM NO. 13
2               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Item No. 13 is
3        consideration of the plenary qualification of
4        Craig Jacobs to serve as Vice President, IT
5        Operations for MGM Resorts International.
6               Again, Senior Counsel Pimpinelli will
7        present.
8               MS. PIMPINELLI:  Chairman and
9        Commissioners, Mr. Jacobs was granted his

10        temporary qualification on August 8, 2018.
11               A draft resolution was circulated to the
12        parties, and counsel is present and may now
13        enter their appearances.
14               MR. MADAMBA:  For the record, Patrick
15        Madamba again, Vice President and Legal Counsel
16        of MGM Resorts International on behalf of the
17        company and Craig Jacobs, the applicant
18        qualifier.
19               We have reviewed the draft resolution,
20        and it is fine in form and substance.
21               Thank you.
22               MS. RICHARDSON:  Good morning again,
23        Chairman and Commissioners.  Tracy Richardson
24        for the Division of Gaming Enforcement.
25               We filed our report on March 15, 2019,
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1        ITEM NO. 13
2        which recommends the plenary qualification of
3        Mr. Jacobs.
4               We've also reviewed the draft resolution
5        and have no objections.
6               Thank you.
7               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any questions for
8        counsel?
9               (No response.)

10               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, is there a
11        motion?
12               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Mr. Chairman, I move
13        to adopt the draft resolution and find Craig
14        Jacobs qualified to serve as Vice President, IT
15        Operations for MGM Resorts International in
16        accordance with NJSA 5:12-85.1c and d, NJSA
17        5:12-89b(1) and (2), and NJAC 13:69C-2.7.
18               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Is there a second?
19               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
20               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any further discussion?
21               (No response.)
22               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, roll call
23        vote?
24               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Commissioner
25        Harrington?
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1        ITEM NO. 13
2               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Yes.
3               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Vice Chair Cooper?
4               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  Yes.
5               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  And Chairman Plousis?
6               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Yes.
7               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  Thank you.
8               MS. RICHARDSON:  Thank you.
9               MS. FAUNTLEROY:  In accordance with

10        Resolution 18-12-05-03, the next closed session
11        shall be held on Wednesday, May 8, 2019, at
12        9:30 a.m. in the Commission offices.
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Good afternoon.  This is
14        the public participation portion of the
15        meeting.  If there are anyone from the public
16        that wishes to be heard, please come forward,
17        identify yourself, and make your statement.
18               MS. PEMBERTON:  Good morning,
19        Commissioners.  My name is Cindy Pemberton.  I
20        currently work as a food runner over at Gordon
21        Ramsay's Pub & Grille in Caesars in Atlantic
22        City, and I'm a proud member of United Here!
23        Local 54.
24               I've worked in Atlantic City most of my
25        adult life.  I was first hired at Resorts 1986
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1        PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
2        and then moved to Showboat when it opened where
3        I worked for 27 years.  In 2014 I was laid off
4        because of the closing of Showboat.  When --
5        Caesars when TPG and Apollo owned the company.
6        When they decided to close Showboat, we were
7        devastated.  I -- no one could have thought
8        that a profitable casino would ever close down
9        in Atlantic City.

10               I was one of the lucky few who found in
11        a sister's property a job, but I still have --
12        don't have the right rate of pay for the years
13        of service that I gave to my company.  They
14        treated the Showboat workers like we were from
15        off the streets and did not -- and we didn't
16        belong there.  I had a manager who I worked
17        with at Showboat, and he brought me over to
18        Gordon Ramsay's and told me that I didn't have
19        a personality.  That I -- that I couldn't be a
20        food server, that I had to be a food runner.  I
21        was a food server at Showboat for 27 years.
22        Now I'm the food runner.
23               Many of my coworkers never found jobs.
24        Some had lost their homes and had to rely on
25        the State for assistance to get through and
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1        PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
2        still haven't found jobs.
3               We do not want to repeat the TPG and
4        Apollo years at Caesars.  My coworkers and I
5        will not stand by while New York billionaires
6        and millionaires strip our companies for their
7        own gain.
8               We are asking you to work with us and
9        protect our jobs in Atlantic City.

10               Thank you.
11               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Thank you.
12               MR. McDEVITT:  Good morning,
13        Commissioners.  My name is Bob McDevitt.  I'm
14        president of Unite Here! Local 54.  We're here
15        today to talk about recent changes at two of
16        our casino employers, as Caesars and MGM.
17               Since the start of the year, both
18        companies have given board seats to Wall Street
19        investors owning a minority stake in the
20        companies.  Carl Ichan got three seats at
21        Caesars.  Keith Meister, an Ichan protégé, is
22        now on the board of MGM.
23               We've been down this road before.  Look
24        at what happened at Caesars after the 2008
25        buyout by Wall Street firms Apollo and TPG that
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1        PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
2        Cindy just referenced.  Private equity was a
3        disaster for the company for workers and for
4        Atlantic City.  Workers at Caesars witnessed
5        years of job cuts and cuts to maintenance.
6        Casinos were closed.
7               The law in New Jersey makes it clear
8        that the casino industry should contribute to
9        the "general welfare, health, and prosperity of

10        the State," including those who work here.
11        So-called active investors, whether they are
12        hedge funds or private equity, are generally
13        interested in benefitting themselves and other
14        shareholders in the short term, often without
15        regard to the long-term consequences for the
16        company.  Consequently, they are a serious
17        threat to the stability and longevity of our
18        industry.
19               As regulators you have many important
20        decisions to make in the months healed.
21        Holding a gaming license is privilege.  As
22        such, gaming licenses can be denied or revoked.
23        And when licenses are approved, conditions can
24        be placed upon licensed holders.  But we are
25        also concerned that the existing regulatory
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1        PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
2        framework may not have anticipated shareholders
3        holding small minority stakes pushing for
4        strategic changes and seats on the board.
5               We didn't come here today simply to
6        raise the alarm, although we all should be
7        alarmed.  We believe that workers, regulators,
8        politicians, and other community stakeholders
9        need to work together to defend the health and

10        the integrity of the casino industry.  We
11        sincerely hope that you work with us.
12               Thank you for this opportunity to speak.
13               I have a formal letter with -- which
14        goes into more detail with this.  I'll be happy
15        to give it to you guys to take when I leave
16        have and we appreciate the time.
17               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Excellent.  Thank you
18        for your comments.
19               And while you're up there, Bob, I want
20        to commend 54 on their efforts and trying to
21        address reentry in the area.
22               MR. McDEVITT:  Oh, thank you.
23               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  And we know you run the
24        model program there.  We salute you for that.
25               And I know the Director is here.  We
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1
2        will do our due diligence on all these
3        applications as they come forward.
4               Thank you.
5               MR. McDEVITT:  Thank you.
6               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Any other public
7        comments?
8               (No response.)
9               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Hearing none, do I have

10        motion to adjourn?
11               VICE CHAIR COOPER:  I'll make the
12        motion.
13               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Second?
14               COMMISSIONER HARRINGTON:  Second.
15               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  All in favor?
16               (Ayes.)
17               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Opposed?
18               (No response.)
19               CHAIR PLOUSIS:  Ayes have it.
20               Thank you.  Meeting adjourned.
21               (Public Meeting 19-04-10 was adjourned
22        at 10:59 a.m.)
23
24
25
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1
2                 C E R T I F I C A T E
3
4               I, DARLENE SILLITOE, a Certified Court
5 Reporter and Notary Public of the State of New Jersey,
6 certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate
7 transcript of the proceedings.
8               I further certify that I am neither
9 attorney, of counsel for, nor related to or employed

10 by any of the parties to the action; further that I am
11 not a relative or employee of any attorney or counsel
12 employed in this case; nor am I financially interested
13 in the action.
14
15
16
17
18                      ______________________
19                      DARLENE SILLITOE, CCR
20                      License No 30XI0102300
21
22 Dated:  April 15, 2019
23 My Notary Commission Expires
24 December 9, 2019
25 ID No 50006932
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